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1                       PROCEEDINGS

2             JUDGE ALBERS:  By the authority vested in

3 me by the Illinois Commerce Commission, I'll now call

4 Docket Numbers 13-501 and 13-0517.  These dockets are

5 consolidated.  The first concerns the complaint of

6 Attorney General State of Illinois seeking suspension

7 of tariff changes and the latter concerns Ameren

8 Illinois Company's revisions to its formula rate

9 structure and protocols.

10                   May I have the appearances for the

11 record, please.

12             MR. STURTEVANT:  Good morning, your Honor.

13 Appearing on behalf of Ameren Illinois Company, Albert

14 Sturtevant of Whitt Sturtevant, LLP, 180 North LaSalle

15 Street, Suite 2001, Chicago, Illinois 60601.  My phone

16 number is (312) 251-3017.

17             MR. OLIVERO:  Thank you, your Honor.

18 Appearing on behalf of the Staff witnesses of the

19 Illinois Commerce Commission, Kim Swan, and James

20 Olivero, and my address is 527 East Capitol Avenue,

21 Springfield, Illinois 62701.

22             MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, your Honors.

23 Appearing on behalf of the State of Illinois through

24 the Attorney General, Sameer H. Doshi.  That's spelled
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1 S-a-m-e-e-r.  Last name is D-o-s-h-i.  My address is

2 100 West Randolph Street, 11th Floor, Chicago,

3 Illinois, 60601.  My phone number is (312)814-8496.

4             MS. HICKS:  On behalf of the Citizens

5 Utility Board, Christie Hicks, 309 West Washington

6 Street, Suite 800, Chicago, Illinois 60606.

7             JUDGE ALBERS:  Any others wishing to enter

8 an appearance?

9                   (No response.)

10             JUDGE ALBERS:  Let the record show no

11 response.

12                   The purpose of today's hearing is to

13 admit in the record and hearing cross-examination

14 regarding the previously submitted testimony on the

15 bifurcated issues in this matter.

16                   Any preliminary matters before we

17 begin?

18             MR. STURTEVANT:  I don't know if you wanted

19 to discuss briefing schedule now or later.

20             JUDGE ALBERS:  We can pick it up later at

21 the end.

22                   All right.  If there is no other

23 preliminary matters, then I think -- Mr. Olivero, is

24 Ms. Ebrey your first witness?
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1             MR. OLIVERO:  I think Mr. Mill or Stafford.

2             MR. STURTEVANT:  I'm happy to call our

3 witnesses.

4             JUDGE ALBERS:  I didn't know since you were

5 up here, Ms. Ebrey.

6             MR. OLIVERO:  I just wanted company

7 actually.

8             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.  Well, go ahead, Mr.

9 Sturtevant.

10             MR. STURTEVANT:  Ameren Illinois Company

11 calls Robert Mill.

12             JUDGE ALBERS:  I'll go ahead and swear Mr.

13 Mill in as well as Mr. Stafford and Ms. Ebrey.

14                   (Oath administered.)

15             JUDGE ALBERS:  Thank you.

16                  *    *    *    *    *

17                     ROBERT J. MILL,

18 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as

19 follows:

20                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

21 QUESTIONS BY MR. STURTEVANT:

22        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Mill.  Can you provide

23 your full name and business address for the record,

24 please.
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1        A.   Yes, my name is Robert J. Mill.  My

2 business address is 6 Executive Drive, Collinsville,

3 Illinois.

4        Q.   And by whom are you employed?

5        A.   Ameren Illinois Company.

6        Q.   And what is your position with Ameren

7 Illinois?

8        A.   I am Senior Director of Regulatory Policy

9 and Rates.

10        Q.   Okay.  Mr. Mill, I have before me what has

11 been marked as Ameren Exhibit 6.0, supplemental

12 rebuttal testimony of Robert J. Mill and accompanying

13 exhibit Ameren Exhibit 6.1.

14             Was this rebuttal testimony and exhibit

15 prepared by you or on your direction and supervision?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   And if you were to be asked the questions

18 contained in your supplemental rebuttal testimony

19 today, would your answers be the same?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Is the information contained in your

22 supplemental rebuttal testimony and accompanying

23 exhibit true and correct to the best of your knowledge

24 and belief?
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1        A.   Yes.

2             MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, we would then

3 move for the admission of Ameren Exhibits 6.0 and 6.1

4 and tender Mr. Mill for cross-examination.

5             JUDGE ALBERS:  Thank you.  We'll rule on

6 admissibility following cross.  Mr. Doshi.

7             JUDGE YODER:  Is your microphone on?

8             THE WITNESS:  I think it's on.  The green

9 light is on.

10             MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, your Honors.

11                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

12 QUESTIONS BY MR. DOSHI:

13        Q.   Mr. Mill, good afternoon.

14        A.   Good afternoon.

15        Q.   I'm Sameer Doshi, an attorney with the

16 Attorney General's office.  I have a few questions for

17 you about your testimony in this case.

18             Could you please turn to page 4 of your

19 supplemental rebuttal testimony, 6.0, line 68 where

20 you state that I or you recommend that the Commission

21 in its order in this case define Ameren Illinois's

22 "formula rate template" to include Schedules FR A-1

23 and FR A-1 REC as well as the supporting schedules and

24 appendices, and finds that the "template" so defined



69

1 represents the formula rate structure that requires a

2 Section 9-201 filing to change.

3             Is that your testimony?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   Could you then turn to page 7 of the same

6 Exhibit 6.0 line 133 where you state that, these

7 provisions and findings -- I suppose I should refer

8 back to page 6, the previous page, where you were

9 referring to previous -- a previous order of the

10 Commission.  So back on page 7 you state that, "These

11 provisions and findings ensure that once the formula

12 rate structure and protocols were established, the

13 annual filings were simply to update cost inputs."

14             Is that your testimony?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   Could I ask, if a party proposed cost input

17 -- proposed an adjustment to cost inputs that does not

18 currently appear on the formula -- formula rate

19 structure and protocols as you have defined it in the

20 context of an annual formula rate update proceeding,

21 could that be accommodated?

22        A.   I need a little more information before I

23 could answer.  Do you have a -- some specific example

24 as to what cost element you may be referring to?  An
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1 operating expense, a capital item?

2        Q.   I do, in fact.  I'll get to that in just a

3 couple of minutes.  Before I get to some more specific

4 examples, I'd like to ask a couple more general

5 questions.

6             Do you agree that the formula rate as the

7 Commission has approved it is intended to be the

8 structure for determining the Company's revenue

9 requirement throughout the term of the EIMA or Energy

10 Infrastructure Modernization Act?

11        A.   Not necessarily.  I think it's possible

12 that this has occurred that there's been modifications

13 to the formula rate template through time.  In fact,

14 this docket is a perfect example.  There were changes

15 in the first phase of this docket.  The Commission

16 issued an order making changes here.  So it does

17 change over time.

18        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And subject to potential

19 modifications in Section 9-201 proceedings, would you

20 agree that the Company's formula rate tariff is

21 intended to guide the determination of the Company's

22 electric service -- electric distribution service

23 revenue requirement throughout the term of the EIMA?

24        A.   Yeah, a qualification, generally, yes, that
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1 would be true.

2        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Do you agree that

3 throughout the term of the EIMA, the Company might

4 experience changes in its costs -- in its electric

5 distribution service costs?

6        A.   Yes, costs are different every year.

7        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Would you agree that

8 throughout the term of the EIMA there may be changes

9 in applicable accounting standards?

10        A.   There could be.

11        Q.   Thank you.  Would you agree that throughout

12 the term of the EIMA there might be or could be

13 changes in applicable legal requirements that affect

14 the Company?

15        A.   Do you have an example of what you're

16 thinking about there?

17        Q.   One example might be changes in federal

18 regulation of electric transmission, for example.

19        A.   That's possible, but transmission is not

20 part of the formula template.

21        Q.   Okay.  Would you agree that throughout the

22 term of the EIMA there could be other circumstances

23 that could affect the Company such as, for example,

24 divestiture of generation assets or acquisition of new
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1 assets?

2        A.   What was the last part?

3        Q.   I said acquisition of new assets.

4        A.   Well, I -- I -- I cannot agree that Ameren

5 Illinois would be divesting its generation assets --

6 Ameren Illinois would not be divesting themselves of

7 generation assets.  I couldn't agree with that

8 example.

9        Q.   Would you agree that Ameren Illinois'

10 parent company's capital structure might be used to

11 calculate or determine capital structure -- cost of

12 capital for Ameren Illinois in the context of an

13 electric distribution formula rate update?

14        A.   Are you saying that that is presently done

15 or under some scenario of facts that could happen?

16        Q.   Yes, I think that's a fair way to

17 understand the question.

18        A.   Which one?

19        Q.   That it could conceivably happen as I

20 described it.

21        A.   Yeah, that one I just don't know if that

22 would happen.  I'm well aware that at present there

23 have been an imputed capital structure that's been

24 accepted by the Commission or ordered by the
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1 Commission, current structure, and the evidence for

2 adopting that in current tariff really I don't think

3 directly points to the -- to the service -- to the

4 holding company as being the basis for that, but there

5 is an imputed or a capital structure in the current

6 formula template from the most recent case that is --

7 that is lower than Ameren Illinois's actual equity

8 ratio, if you will.

9        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Would you agree that

10 throughout the term of the EIMA an Ameren Illinois

11 Company might divest or acquire electric distribution

12 service-related assets?

13             MR. STURTEVANT:  I'm going to object.

14 That's calling for speculation.  There have been a

15 series of questions here that are asking for, you

16 know, possibilities.  Everything's possible.  I think

17 Mr. Mill has already acknowledged that cost can change

18 in some and some circumstances could change.

19             MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, this proceeding, as

20 I understand it, is to set the ground rules for future

21 annual formula rate updates for the next almost ten

22 years, which is why I'm seeking to explore future

23 possibilities that might affect the Company.

24             JUDGE ALBERS:  If I understood your
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1 question, you asked him whether or not it's

2 conceivable that Ameren Illinois could acquire

3 distribution assets?

4             MR. DOSHI:  Yes, acquire or divest.

5             JUDGE ALBERS:  Or divest.  Okay.  I'll

6 allow the question.

7        A.   Do you mean in terms of acquiring another

8 utility or just adding assets to our system?

9 Acquiring a new truck is a -- a line truck -- I'm not

10 sure I actually follow the context of what you're

11 asking me to respond to.

12 BY MR. DOSHI:

13        Q.   I suppose I'm referring to acquisitions or

14 divestiture outside normal course of business.

15        A.   Okay.  And is that possible over the next

16 remaining life of the EIMA legislation?

17        Q.   Yes, sir.

18        A.   I have no personal knowledge if -- if

19 that's a possibility or not.

20        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I'd like to turn to page

21 15 of your Exhibit 6.0.  At line -- At line 303, you

22 state that -- actually at line 302 -- I'm sorry -- you

23 state, "Ms. Ebrey's recommendation would turn the

24 standardized process on its head, by allowing a wide
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1 variety of changes to the types of inputs into the

2 formula rates."  Do you see that?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   Is it your contention that no new type of

5 input should be allowed to enter the formula rate

6 structure and protocols as you've defined it?

7        A.   Yeah, generally they would not be allowed

8 unless, of course, they first were approved through a

9 9-201 proceeding, similar to, I guess, the case we

10 have before us today.  It originated with parties

11 proposing changes to the formula template, and

12 consequently through 9-201 process Commission issued

13 an order which items would change and which items

14 would not change, and consequently that process worked

15 just fine.

16        Q.   So is it your testimony or your -- or the

17 Company's position that in the context of the annual

18 formula rate update proceedings no new type of input

19 should be allowed to enter the formula rate structure

20 and protocols?

21        A.   I'm struggling.  I think that's generally

22 yes, no new input -- no new revenue requirement

23 adjustment not previously reflected in formula

24 template should be undertaken within the context of
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1 the update proceeding, rather it should follow the

2 course of action that was taken in the most recent

3 update case, and which resulted in this consolidated

4 docket, to address it in a 9-201 proceeding.  That

5 would be my answer.

6             MR. DOSHI:  Okay.  Thank you.  I'm now

7 going to distribute to my co-counsel and to your

8 Honors what we will mark -- what I will mark as AG

9 Cross Exhibit 1.  It's the response to a data request

10 that the People submitted to the Company on --

11 actually not sure what day we submitted it, but the

12 Company responded on December 19th.  It was labeled as

13 Data Request AG 1.01.

14                   Your Honors, may I approach the

15 witness?

16             JUDGE ALBERS:  Yes.

17 BY MR. DOSHI:

18        Q.   Mr. Mill, is this --

19             JUDGE ALBERS:  One second.

20             JUDGE YODER:  Off the record.

21                   (WHEREIN, a discussion was held off

22                    the record.)

23             JUDGE ALBERS:  Back on the record.

24 BY MR. DOSHI:
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1        Q.   Thank you, your Honors.

2             Mr. Mill, did you author this data request

3 response?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   In response to AG Question 1.01(a), you

6 stated, "The ICC Staff and intervenors would continue

7 to have the same opportunity to propose adjustments to

8 exclude unreasonable, unjust, or imprudent expenses as

9 they had in prior formula rate update proceedings

10 pursuant to the requirements of the EIMA."  Is that

11 the Company's position?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   Thank you.  And question 1.01(b) was

14 similar to what I asked you a few minutes ago.  The

15 question in the data request was, "How would an

16 adjustment associated with expenses or rate base

17 components not currently identified or described on a

18 specific line on "formula rate template" be

19 incorporated into the "formula rate template" and

20 revenue requirement in a future annual update

21 proceeding without changing "formula rate template,"

22 and your response was, "The question poses

23 hypothetical regarding formula rate treatment of a new

24 expense item or a new rate base component, neither of
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1 which has been identified for formula ratemaking

2 previously.  Without specific information as to what

3 those new or rate base components are, it is not

4 possible for Mr. Mill to conjecture if they could be

5 accommodated within the authorized formula rate

6 template."  Is that the Company's position?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   Thank you.  So now, in response to your

9 request for more specific suggestions or examples of

10 potential future adjustments that may not be

11 accommodated within the template as the Company seeks

12 to define it, I'm going to pose a few specific

13 examples to you if you don't mind.

14             Mr. Mill, do you have in front of you the

15 Company's Exhibit 2.5 in this docket, which was the

16 formula rate schedules and appendices filed after --

17 or filed with the Company's August 19th tariff filing?

18        A.   No, I don't have that.

19             MR. DOSHI:  Your Honors, could I approach

20 the witness to hand Mr. Mill a copy of that Company

21 Exhibit 2.5?

22             JUDGE ALBERS:  Sure.  Mr. Sturtevant might

23 want to look at it too.

24             MR. STURTEVANT:  That's fine, yeah.
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1                   Your Honor, the document handed to

2 Mr. Mill is not actually labeled 2.5.  I don't have

3 any reason to believe that it's not 2.5, but I guess

4 I'd like to be able to confirm that.

5             MR. DOSHI:  Your Honors, I'd be happy if

6 Mr. Sturtevant handed his copy of Exhibit 2.5 to Mr.

7 Mill.

8             MR. STURTEVANT:  I guess I'd like to be

9 able to continue to refer to my copy during the course

10 of the cross-examination.  So do you mind, can I take

11 a minute and approach the witness and just verify that

12 that is, in fact, 2.5?

13             JUDGE ALBERS:  Sure.

14             MR. STURTEVANT:  Sameer, did this come from

15 electronic version?  I thought we circulated an

16 electronic version of this.

17             MR. DOSHI:  I believe so.

18             MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, the Exhibit

19 2.5 that was filed on e-Docket is populated with

20 numbers.  The version or the document that counsel has

21 provided doesn't have any numbers in it.  It's all

22 blank items.

23             MR. OLIVERO:  I've got a copy they can go

24 ahead and use, in fact.  That has numbers, doesn't it?
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1             THE WITNESS:  Okay.

2             MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, Mr. Olivero.

3             MR. OLIVERO:  Sure.

4 BY MR. DOSHI:

5        Q.   Thank you, Mr. Sturtevant.

6             Mr. Mill, are you now looking at the

7 Company Exhibit 2.5 in this proceeding?

8        A.   Yes, that's what I have in front of me

9 here.

10        Q.   Thank you.  Could you turn to Appendix 1 of

11 Exhibit 2.5, and could you turn to the second page of

12 Appendix 1 if you don't mind.

13        A.   Is that labeled page 16 of 30?  Is that

14 what --

15        Q.   That's right.  If the ICC Staff or

16 intervening parties wished to propose adjustments in

17 future annual formula area update proceedings to

18 Projected Plant Additions that are not expressly

19 captured by lines 31 through 36 of Appendix 1 --

20        A.   I don't -- Okay.  That's not on page 16.

21        Q.   I'm sorry.  I made a mistake with the page

22 number.  Could you look at the third page of Appendix

23 1, which is page 17 of Exhibit 2.5.

24        A.   Okay.  I'm there.
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1        Q.   I'm sorry.  If the ICC Staff or intervenors

2 wished to propose adjustments in future annual formula

3 rate update proceedings to Projected Plant Additions

4 that were not expressly captured by lines 31 through

5 36 of Appendix 1, then would line 47 of Appendix 1 be

6 the appropriate place to reflect such adjustments if

7 they were approved by the Commission?

8             MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, I'm going to

9 object.  I believe there's an assumption built into

10 the question that you could have Projected Plant

11 Additions not encompassed by lines 31 through 37 or

12 36.

13             JUDGE ALBERS:  Do you want to respond to

14 that?

15             MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, it's -- it's

16 possible that the Company could have Projected Plant

17 Additions outside its prior or ordinary course of

18 business that would not be appropriately reflected in

19 any of lines 31 through 36.

20             JUDGE ALBERS:  I think I'll give you some

21 leeway to go ahead and proceed with that question.

22             MR. DOSHI:  Thank you.

23        A.   A clarifying question, if I may.  So what

24 is the nature of the plant addition that would be



82

1 added?  Do you have a functional use for it?  Because

2 this covers distribution plant, general and intangible

3 plant, which pretty much covers the plants on the

4 records of Ameren Illinois.  So I'm trying to

5 understand what -- what sort of additional asset

6 function would be added here because I think if -- if

7 you found additional distribution plant that should be

8 added, it would simply be added to adjust it to line

9 31.  The number on 31 would change by some amount by

10 the intervenor's amount that they determined should be

11 added or even subtracted, and -- yeah, of course, that

12 could be -- You know, the benchmark here is looking at

13 the reasonableness of the costs and the prudency of

14 the costs.

15        Q.   So as I understand your answer, you don't

16 believe there are any conceivable adjustments to

17 Projected Plant Additions that would not be described

18 or reflected by lines 31 through 36 on Appendix 1 of

19 the formula rate template?

20        A.   That -- That's my answer, yes.

21        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Could you look at -- on

22 the same page -- third page of Appendix 1, which is

23 page 17 of Exhibit 2.5.  Please look at lines 38

24 through 41.  If the ICC Staff or intervening parties
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1 wished to propose adjustments to projected change in

2 Depreciation Reserve that were not captured or

3 described by lines 38 through 41, would line 47 of

4 Appendix 1 be the appropriate place to reflect such

5 adjustment?

6        A.   This question talked about possibly a

7 different methodology for computing depreciation

8 expense.  To me it really depends on -- on what is

9 driving this change.  If it's simply that -- that

10 Staff is challenging the amount of distribution plant

11 and the nature of that plant, and somebody's

12 recalculating the depreciation expense, I think that

13 would simply take place on lines 38 through 41.  I

14 have to say somebody comes up with -- dreams up a

15 whole new methodology for calculating depreciation

16 reserve, as you seem to suggest, a different

17 methodology or something, I'm not exactly sure where

18 that would go, but to me that might be the sort of --

19 the sort of adjustment that I would contend should be

20 taken outside this case and put in a 9-201 case.  If

21 somebody is coming up with entirely different

22 methodology for computation of depreciation expense

23 but without any specificity, I don't know exactly what

24 you're -- what you're seeking here.
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1        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  If the Staff or

2 intervening parties wished to propose adjustments to

3 Materials and Supplies expense that were not reflected

4 or described by lines 49 through 50 on Appendix 1,

5 would line 47 of Appendix 1 be the appropriate place

6 to reflect such adjustment if it were approved by the

7 Commission?

8        A.   Again I think it comes down to is there a

9 methodology change being proposed.  For instance, a

10 change from year end to average or some other

11 methodology.  To me that would be determined

12 ultimately in a 9-201 case.  Again if it's using the

13 same methodology here, but correcting what may be

14 perceived as a -- some -- some flaw in the

15 calculation, then I think that could simply be a

16 proposed change on lines 49 and 50 or wherever, and

17 the intervenor could propose a new value.  The

18 methodology in that instance isn't really changing,

19 it's they're perfecting that -- that calculation.  So

20 may be presumed error, oversight, prudence,

21 reasonableness of some cost assumption, what have you.

22        Q.   All right.  Thank you.  I just have two

23 more questions.  Could you turn to the next page of

24 Exhibit 2.5, which is labeled as Appendix 2 of the
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1 formula rate structure and protocols or formula rate

2 template as the Company has proposed to call it.  If

3 the Staff or intervening parties wished to propose

4 adjustments to customer deposits, would line 47 of

5 Appendix 1 be an appropriate place to reflect such

6 adjustments or could any adjustment be implemented

7 through the existing line 1 on Appendix 2?

8        A.   Well, Appendix -- Appendix 2 here is not a

9 -- strike that.  I guess I'm -- I'm -- I'm having

10 again a problem with what -- what is changing.  My

11 view is it kind of depends how -- how things have

12 changed.  EIMA legislation obviously expects costs to

13 be reviewed for prudence, reasonableness in amount,

14 and make sure they're properly calculated, and if

15 they're not, I could foresee these various lines --

16 we've talked about changing -- you know, somebody

17 putting forth a corrected position for that

18 calculation and that number changing.  I don't think

19 what's anticipated is changing the methodology, rather

20 than, you know, a year end value as shown here on

21 Appendix 2, somebody wants to change number because

22 they want to use a 13-month average or whatever that

23 value might be.

24             Now, you've got a new methodology, average,
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1 that is being introduced to the formula, and it's my

2 view that that is taken offline if a party wants to

3 take that into a 9-201 proceeding to attempt to

4 prevail on a change in methodology to -- to the

5 formula, then that would be the vehicle.  And so

6 that's why I'm struggling where you would make the

7 change.

8        Q.   So if the Commission approved an adjustment

9 proposed by Staff or intervenors to Customer Deposits

10 based on a consideration of prudence, would you agree

11 that line 1 on Appendix 2 could reflect that adjusted

12 value?

13        A.   Yeah, that seems correct to me.

14        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And my final question,

15 if you could turn to Appendix 6 of the formula rate

16 template, as the Company has sought to call it, my

17 question regarding Appendix 6 is a similar question.

18 If the Staff or intervening parties wished to propose

19 adjustments to Property Held For Future Use in Rate

20 Base, could line 1 on Appendix 6 reflect the adjusted

21 value if the Commission approved such adjustment for

22 prudence, or should that adjustment go into line 47 of

23 Appendix 1?

24             MR. STURTEVANT:  I'm going to object as
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1 vague.  I'm not sure I understood.  Are we talking

2 about a change in an item of property held for future

3 use or an additional property held -- item of property

4 held for future use?  I wasn't clear what the question

5 was referring to.

6             JUDGE ALBERS:  Yeah.  Can you try to

7 rephrase that.

8 BY MR. DOSHI:

9        Q.   Okay.  If the Staff or intervening party

10 challenged the prudence of a particular item of

11 property held for future use in rate base and the

12 Commission accepted such adjustment, then could the

13 adjusted value be reflected in line one on Appendix 6

14 or should the adjustment appear in line 47 of Appendix

15 1?

16        A.   I would say --

17             MR. STURTEVANT:  I'm sorry.  I guess I'm

18 going to object because my version of 2.5 line 1

19 appears to represent a specific item or a specific

20 piece of property.  So I'm not sure how you would

21 reflect a change to some other piece of property.

22 BY MR. DOSHI:

23        Q.   I'm sorry, your Honors.  Mr. Sturtevant is

24 correct.  Let me rephrase my question.
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1             Would line 5 of Appendix 6 be the

2 appropriate place to reflect an adjustment for

3 prudence approved by the Commission to Property Held

4 For Future Use in Rate Base?

5        A.   You know, it could be, but, you know, it

6 could end up on any of the first four lines.  You're

7 suggesting a prudence adjustment.  So I take that to

8 mean that the Company has included a value here, and

9 you're removing the value for prudence purposes.  So

10 you're lowering something.  So if it relates to the

11 Dupo Area Sub, we're going to lower that particular

12 asset or future use property, then that would take

13 place on line 1.  It may end up on line 4 if it's more

14 generic, you know, having a value less than $250,000,

15 it could end up on that level.  That's kind of where I

16 see that particular adjustment being reflected.

17             MR. DOSHI:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's all

18 the questions I have, Mr. Mill.

19             JUDGE ALBERS:  Does Staff have any

20 questions?

21             MR. OLIVERO:  No.  No, your Honor.

22             JUDGE ALBERS:  Did you have redirect?

23             MR. STURTEVANT:  Can we have a minute with

24 the witness?
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1             JUDGE ALBERS:  Yes.

2             (WHEREIN, a break was taken.)

3             JUDGE ALBERS:  Mr. Sturtevant, did you have

4 any redirect?

5             MR. STURTEVANT:  No redirect, your Honor.

6             JUDGE ALBERS:  All right.  Mr. Doshi, did

7 you want to move for the admission of your Cross

8 exhibit?

9             MR. DOSHI:  Yes, your Honor.  I'd like at

10 this time to move for admission of what we've marked

11 as AG Cross Exhibit 1-SH.

12             JUDGE ALBERS:  Is there any objection to

13 that?

14             MR. STURTEVANT:  No objection.

15             JUDGE ALBERS:  AG Cross Exhibit 1 is

16 admitted.

17                   (AG Cross Exhibit 1 admitted.)

18             JUDGE ALBERS:  And is there any objection

19 to Ameren Exhibit 6.0 and 6.1?

20                   (No response.)

21             JUDGE ALBERS:  Hearing none, those are also

22 admitted.

23                   (Ameren Exhibits 6.0 and 6.1

24                    admitted.)
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1             JUDGE ALBERS:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Mill.

2                   (Witness excused.)

3             JUDGE YODER:  Mr. Stafford, for the record

4 were you previously sworn?

5             MR. STAFFORD:  Yes.

6             JUDGE YODER:  Thank you.

7                  *    *    *    *    *

8                   RONALD D. STAFFORD,

9 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as

10 follows:

11                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

12 QUESTIONS BY MR. STURTEVANT:

13        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Stafford.

14        A.   Good afternoon.

15        Q.   Can you state your full name and business

16 address for the record, please.

17        A.   Ronald D. Stafford.  My business address is

18 1901 Choteau Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri.

19        Q.   And by whom are you employed?

20        A.   Ameren Illinois.

21        Q.   What is your position with Ameren Illinois?

22        A.   Director of Regulatory Accounting.

23        Q.   Mr. Stafford, I have what has been marked

24 as Ameren Exhibit 7.0, supplemental rebuttal testimony
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1 of Ronald D. Stafford.  Was this supplemental rebuttal

2 testimony prepared by you or under your direction and

3 supervision?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   And, Mr. Stafford, if I were to ask you

6 questions contained in your supplemental rebuttal

7 testimony today, would your answer be the same?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   And is the information contained in your

10 supplemental rebuttal testimony true and correct to

11 the best of your knowledge and belief?

12        A.   Yes.

13             MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, we would move

14 for the admission of American Exhibit 7.0 and tender

15 Mr. Stafford for cross-examination.

16             JUDGE YODER:  Thank you.  We will reserve

17 ruling on admissibility following cross.  Mr. Doshi, I

18 understand the AG has reserved cross for Mr. Stafford.

19             MR. DOSHI:  Yes.  Thank you, your Honor.

20                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

21 QUESTIONS BY MR. DOSHI:

22        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Stafford.

23        A.   Good afternoon.

24        Q.   I have just a few short questions for you.
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1 Can you turn in your supplemental rebuttal testimony,

2 Exhibit 7.0, could you turn to page 2 line 32.  You

3 state that -- actually let me go back to line 30.  You

4 state that, "For example, any changes to revenue

5 requirement resulting from workpaper inputs at the

6 Rebuttal filing would require an addition to, or a

7 revision to, an existing workpaper.  Such changes can

8 include, for example, the Company's agreement to

9 accept one or more of Staff's proposed operating

10 expense adjustments, either based on agreement with

11 Staff or acceptance of adjustments in order to limit

12 outstanding issues.  Such acceptance would require

13 modification to workpapers in support of Appendix 7.

14 Do you see that?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   Would you agree that in the course of an

17 annual formula rate update proceeding, if the

18 Commission accepts an adjustment to rate base or

19 operating expense, that the calculation or derivation

20 of the adjustment would be shown on an accompanying

21 workpaper?

22        A.   Generally I would agree with that.  There

23 could be some examples where there might not be a

24 specific workpaper input for calculation template, but
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1 for the most part that would be true.

2        Q.   What would be an example where -- where the

3 adjustment would not be shown in a workpaper?

4        A.   Well, one example that I see is on Exhibit

5 2.5.  I'm looking at page 2.  For example, line 23,

6 that's listed as Prior Year Filing -- Prior Filing

7 Year Revenue Requirement.  The source for that input

8 is not a workpaper, but rather it's a prior year

9 schedule FR A-1.  So that's an example of where if it

10 was determined that an error was made in that

11 calculation, then the source for that error correction

12 would not be a workpaper.  Instead, the Company would

13 have the parties refer back to the prior year FR A-1,

14 indicate an error was made, and correct that error,

15 and again that's because the source for this input is

16 not a workpaper, it's another source.

17        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  So in your hypothetical

18 example, the Company would -- would file a new or a

19 corrected Schedule FR A-1 for the prior year's formula

20 rate annual update docket?

21        A.   No, I'm not referring to a correction to

22 the prior year filed schedule.  I'm referring to the

23 current proceeding schedule.  If an error was actually

24  -- if the number was listed incorrectly, if there was
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1 a numerical error, a transposition in the number on

2 the schedule where it doesn't actually pick up the

3 right number from the prior year, and that would be

4 corrected in the current year by a schedule.

5        Q.   I see.  I'm sorry for misunderstanding you.

6 Thank you.  So generally, if the Commission approves

7 an adjustment proposed by Staff or intervening

8 parties, based on -- Let me back up -- an adjustment

9 proposed by Staff or intervening parties to operating

10 expense or rate base, based on considerations of

11 prudence in the context of an annual formula rate

12 update proceeding, would the Company then make a

13 corresponding adjustment to an appropriate workpaper

14 to show the derivation or implementation of that

15 adjustment?

16        A.   To the extent that -- that a workpaper

17 could accommodate the change, and the change could be

18 reflected in the formula template within any

19 restrictions imposed under the Act -- Public Act

20 098-015, as long as it was consistent with that, then

21 I would say yes.

22        Q.   And if the Commission accepted such an

23 adjustment based on prudence to operating expense or

24 rate base, would the workpaper showing that adjustment



95

1 be indicated in the source column in the formula rate

2 template, as the Company's calling it, in other words,

3 the schedules and appendices?

4        A.   Do you have a specific example in mind?  I

5 guess that could -- The question seems very broad to

6 me.  So I'm not sure if I understand exactly what

7 you're asking me.

8        Q.   Okay.  I'll try to suggest a specific

9 example.  Do you have Ameren Exhibit 2.5 with you?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   Could you look at Appendix 7 which begins

12 on page 24 of Ameren Exhibit 2.5.

13        A.   I have that.

14        Q.   Could you look at the second page of

15 Appendix 7, which is page 25 of Ameren's Exhibit 2.5.

16 Could you look at, for example, line 29 on page 25 of

17 Exhibit 2.5, line 29 is labeled as Other One-Time

18 Expenses Greater Than $3.7M, if any.  Do you see that?

19        A.   I do.

20        Q.   And in column B, there does not appear to

21 be a source listed for that item in row 29.  Do you

22 see that?

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   And I haven't chosen this particular item
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1 because it's so significantly of greater importance

2 than other possible adjustments, but just to pick one,

3 if Staff or intervenors proposed an adjustment based

4 on prudence to a one-time expense greater than $3.7M

5 that the Company had proposed in its filing and the

6 Commission approved such adjustment based on prudence

7 -- I guess I have a two-part question.  First, would

8 that adjustment be shown in a workpaper, and, second,

9 would that workpaper be listed in line 29 column B as

10 a source for the adjustment or calculation?

11        A.   Well, the type of adjustment you just

12 described could not be directly accommodated here

13 because under the source column there's no workpaper

14 source.  So to the extent there was an adjustment for

15 prudence related to that, an item greater than 3.7,

16 then that adjustment would have to be to the extent

17 possible accommodated on different location within the

18 formula rate template.

19        Q.   Do you have an idea of where in the formula

20 rate template that adjustment could be accommodated?

21        A.   Generally speaking, the items dealing with

22 line 29 are operating expense items, and the purpose

23 of this adjustment generally would be to reduce or

24 increase operating expense for an item.  So depending
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1 on the nature of the item, the one possible location

2 would be line 16 from the prior page.  It again

3 depends on whether the item's truly an approved

4 adjustment, and obviously that's within the scope of

5 the EIMA and have to be considered whether that

6 adjustment can fit within the existing formula rate

7 template.  Talking hypotheticals now rather than

8 actual items.  So the actual nature of the item would

9 have to be reviewed and considered to whether it could

10 actually be accommodated within the existing template

11 without change.

12        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  So would you say that

13 it's the Company's position that for any given expense

14 or rate base item currently listed in the template as

15 the Company has sought to define it, if workpaper is

16 presently not listed in column B for that line item as

17 the source, then in future annual formula rate update

18 proceedings, it would not be possible to -- to add a

19 workpaper citation as the source for that line item?

20 Is that the Company's position?

21        A.   The change you just described, you know, in

22 my opinion is the type of change that EIMA anticipates

23 would be accommodated through a 9-201 filing, and the

24 legislation itself talks about operating standardized
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1 manner.  Once you establish initial formula rate, the

2 intent is to update inputs.

3             What you're describing to me, I think, is

4 Mr. Mill referred to before is potentially a

5 methodology change, and the methodology change here

6 would be the fact that the template itself is

7 changing.  You know, you're trying to add a workpaper

8 where there wasn't a workpaper existing before.  So to

9 me that -- that type of change would be handled

10 through a 9-201 proceeding because it's an actual

11 change to the structure -- formula rate structure

12 that's in place for updating inputs to template.  It

13 goes beyond just a pure update.  It goes to an actual

14 change in the methodology or approach.

15             MR. DOSHI:  Okay.  Thank you.  Mr.

16 Stafford, that's all my questions.  Thank you very

17 much.

18             JUDGE YODER:  Thank you.  Do you have any

19 redirect?

20             MR. STURTEVANT:  Could we have a minute?

21             JUDGE YODER:  Sure.  Off the record.

22                   (WHEREIN, a discussion was held off

23                    the record.)

24             JUDGE YODER:  Back on the record.



99

1             MR. STURTEVANT:  No redirect, your Honor.

2             JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  Is there any objection

3 to admission of Ameren Illinois Exhibit 7.0, the

4 supplemental rebuttal testimony of Mr. Stafford?

5                   (No response.)

6             JUDGE YODER:  Hearing no objection, it will

7 be admitted into evidence in this docket.

8                   (Ameren Illinois Exhibit 7.0

9                    admitted.)

10             JUDGE YODER:  Thank you, Mr. Stafford.

11             JUDGE ALBERS:  Why don't we recess for

12 about five minutes.

13             (WHEREIN, a break was taken.)

14             JUDGE ALBERS:  Back on the record.

15                   Ms. Ebrey, you were sworn in

16 earlier, correct?

17             MS. EBREY:  Correct.

18             JUDGE ALBERS:  Thank you, Ms. Ebrey.

19                   Mr. Olivero.

20                  *    *    *    *    *

21                      THERESA EBREY,

22 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as

23 follows:

24



100

1                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

2 QUESTIONS BY MR. OLIVERO:

3        Q.   Thank you, your Honor.

4             Good afternoon, Ms. Ebrey.  Would you

5 please state your full name and spell your last name

6 for the record.

7        A.   Theresa Ebrey, E-b-r-e-y.

8        Q.   And by whom are you employed?

9        A.   Illinois Commerce Commission.

10        Q.   And what is your position with the Illinois

11 Commerce Commission?

12        A.   I'm an accountant in the Accounting

13 Department of the Financial Analysis Division.

14        Q.   And, Ms. Ebrey, have you prepared written

15 testimony for purposes of this bifurcated proceeding?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   And do you have before you a document which

18 has been marked for identification as ICC Staff

19 Exhibit 11.0 entitled Rebuttal Testimony on Bifurcated

20 Issues of Theresa Ebrey consisting of a cover page, a

21 table of contents, 19 pages of narrative testimony,

22 and attachments A through H?

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   And is that a true and correct copy of the
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1 rebuttal testimony that you prepared for this

2 proceeding and filed on the Commission's e-Docket

3 system originally on November 18th, 2013, as Staff

4 Exhibit 9 and then subsequently renumbered and filed

5 yesterday as Staff Exhibit 11, correct?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   Do you have any corrections to make to your

8 prepared rebuttal testimony?

9        A.   No.

10        Q.   And is the information contained in ICC

11 Staff Exhibit 11 and the accompanying attachments true

12 and correct to the best of your knowledge?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   And if you were asked the same questions

15 today, would your answers contained in the prepared

16 testimony be the same?

17        A.   Yes.

18             MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, at this time I

19 would move for admission into evidence of Ms. Ebrey's

20 prepared rebuttal testimony marked as ICC Staff

21 Exhibit 11.0 including attachments A through H, and as

22 I previously noted, this is the same document that we

23 originally filed on the Commission's e-Docket system

24 on November 18th, 2013, as Staff Exhibit 9, but
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1 refiled yesterday with an errata as Staff Exhibit 11

2 and would tender Ms. Ebrey for cross-examination.

3             JUDGE ALBERS:  We'll rule on admissibility

4 following the cross-examination.

5                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

6 QUESTIONS BY MR. STURTEVANT:

7        Q.   Thank you, your Honor.

8             Good afternoon, Ms. Ebrey.  My name is

9 Albert Sturtevant.  Before I turn to my questions, I

10 do have what I believe is a set of three data

11 responses which have been agreed for admission to the

12 record marked as AIC Cross Exhibit 1SH, and it

13 consists of Data Response AIC-Staff 1.18, AIC-Staff

14 1.28, and AIC-Staff 1.36.

15             Your Honor, can I approach the witness?

16             JUDGE ALBERS:  Yes.

17             MR. STURTEVANT:  And is your preference

18 that we just hand Cross Exhibits to the court

19 reporter, or do you want us to --

20             JUDGE ALBERS:  You can just hand them to

21 her.  She can stamp them.

22 BY MR. STURTEVANT:

23        Q.   It's one exhibit, three data responses.

24             Now, Ms. Ebrey, with respect to your



103

1 testimony now marked, I believe, Exhibit 11, lines 20

2 through 23, it remains your recommendation that the

3 Commission define formula rate structure to mean the

4 Commission approved tariff set forth in Ameren's

5 tariffs as Rate MAP-P, Tariff Sheet Nos. 16 through

6 16.013 that contains the Schedules FR A-1 and FR A-1

7 REC, correct?

8        A.   Correct.

9        Q.   And it also remains your recommendation at

10 lines 27 through 28 of Exhibit 11 that the only

11 changes to -- I'm sorry -- that only changes to FR A-1

12 and FR A-1 REC require Commission approval in a

13 Section 9-201 proceeding, right?

14        A.   That's my recommendation.

15        Q.   You are familiar, with a document attached

16 to Mr. Stafford's testimony and much discussed already

17 today, Ameren Exhibit 2.5?

18        A.   I did see it.  I haven't looked at it

19 recently.

20        Q.   Okay.  Do you have a copy of it?

21        A.   No.

22             MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, may I

23 approach?

24             JUDGE ALBERS:  Yes.
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1 BY MR. STURTEVANT:

2        Q.   Show you Exhibit 2.5 we were referring to

3 earlier.

4        A.   I believe so.

5        Q.   And you would agree that that Exhibit 2.5

6 contains schedules FR A-1 and FR A-1 REC, correct?

7        A.   Correct.

8        Q.   And you're familiar with those schedules?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   And it also contains a variety of other

11 schedules starting with A-2 continuing through D-2 as

12 well as Appendices App 1 through App 11; is that

13 correct?

14        A.   That's correct.

15        Q.   Okay.  And I assume you are familiar with

16 the contents of those other schedules and appendices;

17 is that correct?

18        A.   The FR A-2 through App 11?

19        Q.   Yeah.

20        A.   Generally, yes.

21        Q.   Okay.  So you're generally familiar with

22 the schedules that would form the basis of what you --

23 - and I guess workpapers as well formed the basis for

24 what you would be recommending defined as the template
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1 in your Exhibit 11.0?

2        A.   Right.  I'm generally familiar with those.

3        Q.   Okay.

4             MR. OLIVERO:  Can I just ask for

5 clarification.  Did you also mean workpapers 1 through

6 22 or just the schedules and apps?

7             MR. STURTEVANT:  Well, I don't believe

8 there are any workpapers contained in Ameren Exhibit

9 2.5.

10             MR. OLIVERO:  Right.  They are not

11 contained, but they are listed on that first page.

12 BY MR. STURTEVANT:

13        Q.   They are listed on that first page.  I

14 assume you're familiar with the workpapers generally

15 as well, right?

16        A.   Right.  And just to clarify, they're

17 included in my -- what I would define as formula rate

18 template.

19        Q.   Right.  If your recommendation that we just

20 discussed is adopted, parties could propose changes to

21 any of the schedules or appendices identified on this

22 page 1 of Ameren Exhibit 2.5 other than FR A-1 and FR

23 A-1 REC in an annual formula update and reconciliation

24 proceeding; is that right?
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1        A.   Generally they could propose changes.

2 Those changes would also have to comply with the EIMA

3 statute.

4        Q.   So your position is that changes as long as

5 they comply with the EIMA to these schedules and

6 appendices other than FR A-1 and FR A-1 REC could be

7 made -- any changes could be made in an annual formula

8 update?

9        A.   I believe so.

10        Q.   But changes to FR A-1 and FR A-1 REC are

11 only in a section 9-201 proceeding; is that right?

12        A.   Correct.

13        Q.   Could you turn please to page 8 of Exhibit

14 2.5.

15             MR. OLIVERO:  What page?

16 BY MR. STURTEVANT:

17        Q.   Page 8.  It says schedule FR B-1, and you

18 see there line 29 of page 8, is Accumulated Deferred

19 Income Taxes or ADIT, correct?

20        A.   Correct.

21        Q.   So you would agree that if your

22 recommendation was adopted, party to an annual update

23 and reconciliation proceeding could propose to remove

24 line 29 and not make an adjustment for ADIT; is that
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1 correct?

2        A.   A party could make any proposal they would

3 want to make.  They would have to support that

4 proposal, and they would have to explain why it would

5 be appropriate to not include ADIT in the

6 determination of rate base.  When Staff does its

7 analysis in these formula rate proceedings, Staff uses

8 its model that it has historically used in rate cases,

9 and Staff does not recommend changes to these

10 schedules and apps that are in this template.  Staff

11 proposes adjustments for prudence, reasonableness as

12 we have in -- in -- traditionally in rate cases, which

13 is provided for in the EIMA.  So just because a party

14 proposes an adjustment doesn't necessarily mean that

15 the adjustment is to make a change to one of these

16 schedules, apps or work papers.

17        Q.   So based on that then, are you saying as a

18 general matter that Staff's proposals are for prudence

19 and reasonableness of costs and Staff would not as a

20 general course propose changes to schedules or apps

21 shown here?

22        A.   I think that's correct.  I don't think that

23 any of Staff's adjustments, it's my recollection from

24 -- from Docket 13-0301, I can only think of maybe one



108

1 change -- one change that Staff proposed specifically

2 to these schedules and workpapers.

3        Q.   Okay.  So -- and I'm not asking about the

4 merits of the proposals that I just laid for example.

5 What I just referenced with regard to line 29, ADIT, I

6 recognize there would have to be a merits issue, but I

7 guess what I would ask you is if a party made such a

8 proposal, and recognizing that they would have to

9 support their proposal, the Commission would have to

10 decide in the updated reconciliation proceeding

11 whether or not to include line 29 if a party had

12 proposed to remove it?

13        A.   That's not my recommendation in this case,

14 no.

15        Q.   Well, I believe you just said that a party

16 could propose in an updated reconciliation case to

17 remove line 29, correct?

18        A.   I said they could propose an adjustment to

19 not include ADIT in the development of the rate base.

20 I don't know that they would make a proposal to remove

21 line 29 from the schedule FR B-1.

22        Q.   Right, but I guess what I'm saying is if

23 your recommendation was adopted, a party could in an

24 updated reconciliation propose to simply remove that
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1 line item and, of course, they would be removing ADIT

2 as well, but they could propose to remove that line

3 item from Schedule FR B-1, right, in an updated

4 reconciliation as opposed to a Section 9-201

5 proceeding?

6        A.   Hypothetically, I suppose they could, but

7 we've already been through three formula rate

8 proceedings.  Two of those were updates, and I don't

9 recall any party recommending removal of lines from

10 any of these schedules.

11        Q.   Right.

12        A.   I don't know why they would.

13        Q.   I -- Again I'm not asking you why they

14 would or if the proposal was meritorious.  I'm just

15 saying that under your proposal somebody could come

16 into an updated reconciliation proceeding and propose

17 to remove line 29 from Schedule FR B-1?

18        A.   I suppose they could.

19        Q.   And if they did make that proposal, the

20 Commission would have to decide in the proceeding

21 whether that was appropriate or not, correct?

22        A.   Correct.

23        Q.   Okay.  And similarly, party could propose

24 in an updated reconciliation proceeding to remove line
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1 30 related to materials and supplies inventories,

2 correct?

3        A.   Again if the parties were looking

4 specifically at these schedules and recommending that

5 certain lines be removed, I suppose that could happen.

6 The updates that I've been involved with, no party --

7 I don't recall a party making such a recommendation.

8 Their recommendation is whether an item needs to be

9 included in rate base in the revenue requirement.

10        Q.   Right, but again I'm not asking about the

11 merits or whether it's happened before, but whether a

12 party could conceivably make such a proposal.

13        A.   I suppose they could.

14        Q.   And the party and the Commission would have

15 to decide whether that proposal was appropriate,

16 right?

17        A.   Right.

18        Q.   And, likewise, we looked at line 31, which

19 is Other Deferred Charges, items greater than 3.7M

20 million, a party could propose to modify line 31 so

21 the amount was something other than 3.7M, is that

22 right, in an updated reconciliation proceeding if your

23 proposal was adopted?

24        A.   I don't believe so because I think that
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1 3.7M is set in the statute.  So the party could

2 propose it, but it wouldn't be something that is --

3        Q.   Okay.

4        A.   -- compliant with the statute so --

5        Q.   So if it can't be changed because it's part

6 of the statute, then the fact that it's a statutory

7 mandate is an example of an item in the schedules and

8 appendices other than FR A-1 and FR A-1 REC that could

9 not be changed in a formula rate updated

10 reconciliation?

11        A.   Are you -- Are you speaking to the -- the

12 picture of this form, or are you speaking to how that

13 is handled for the development of the revenue

14 requirement because those are two different things?

15        Q.   Well, I guess I'm asking you can a party --

16 could a party propose to modify the 3.7M, the number

17 rate, you know, contained in the formula?

18        A.   The number as it appears on this -- on this

19 picture?

20        Q.   Well, yes, I'm asking you could a party

21 propose to modify not just for picture purposes but

22 for actual computational -- formula computational

23 purposes, a party could propose to modify schedule FR

24 B-1 so that line 31 referred to some other amount
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1 other than 3.7M?

2        A.   I think a party could make any kind of

3 proposal, but once again that would not be compliant

4 with the EIMA so it would be an easy decision for the

5 Commission to make.

6        Q.   So that change then -- strike that.  Now

7 you're familiar with Docket 13-0301, correct --

8        A.   Correct.

9        Q.   -- Ameren's 2013 formula update and

10 reconciliation, correct?

11        A.   Right.

12        Q.   And you were the case manager for that

13 docket; is that correct?

14        A.   That's correct.

15        Q.   So you're aware then in that docket the

16 Commission deducted an amount from rate base

17 representing the Accrued Vacation Reserve?

18        A.   I believe that's correct.

19        Q.   Now, there's not an entry for Accrued

20 Vacation Reserve on FR A-1 or FR A-1 REC; is that

21 correct?

22        A.   That's correct.

23        Q.   And you're not aware of an entry for

24 Accrued Vacation Reserve or Vacation Accrual in the
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1 other schedules and appendices in Exhibit 2.5; is that

2 correct?

3        A.   I believe that's correct.

4        Q.   Okay.  And the deduction for Accrued

5 Vacation Reserve, you would agree, would be reflected

6 in line 34a, if you turn to page 8 of Exhibit 2.5 and

7 there's a line 34a there, Other Rate Base Items -

8 Adjustments, that's where the Vacation -- Accrued

9 Vacation Reserve Adjustment would be reflected; is

10 that correct?

11        A.   I'm not sure that that would be the

12 appropriate place to reflect that.  I believe that

13 that Accrued Vacation Reserve Adjustment was in --

14 Accumulated Deferred Income Adjustment to -- an

15 adjustment for income tax.  So, you know, maybe the

16 adjustment would appear on App 4, which is --

17 indicates that's where the accumulated for income tax

18 adjustment or amount would come from.

19        Q.   Well, in any event your definition of

20 formula rate structure as FR A-1 and FR A-1 REC would

21 not include on it an adjustment for Accrued Vacation

22 Reserve; is that correct?

23        A.   FR A-1 and FR A-1 REC show the final

24 revenue requirement numbers.  They don't show specific
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1 adjustments that the Commission has approved.  So your

2 statement is correct, but no adjustments show on those

3 pages, and the Commission is approving a revenue

4 requirement, and that's what's presented on FR A-1 is

5 the approved revenue requirement.

6        Q.   Right.  So just to make sure that I'm

7 clear, the definition that you propose in formula rate

8 structure does not include any specific line item for

9 Vacation Accrual or Accrued Vacation Reserve, correct?

10        A.   Could you repeat that?

11        Q.   Your definition -- and I'm looking at your

12 definition on page 2 of Exhibit 11.0, formula rate

13 structure does not include an adjustment -- expressed

14 line item for adjustment for accrued vacation reserve

15 anywhere in your definition of formula rate structure?

16        A.   No because my definition is based on the

17 specific schedules that the Commission did approve.

18        Q.   Okay.  So if your recommended definition of

19 formula rate structure is adopted, a party could

20 propose in an updated reconciliation proceeding that

21 the deduction for vacation accrual not be made; is

22 that correct?

23        A.   Could you repeat that?

24        Q.   Well, if your definition -- I'm sorry.  If
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1 your recommended definition of formula rate structure

2 was adopted, a party could propose in an update

3 reconciliation proceeding that that deduction not be

4 made the next time around?  So, for example, in the

5 upcoming 2014 updated reconciliation, a party could

6 propose to not make or to reverse the deduction for

7 accrued vacation reserve; is that correct?

8        A.   I believe that's correct.  I also believe

9 that there were some adjustments that were approved in

10 Docket 12-0001 and 12-0293, I believe was Ameren's

11 first update case.  There were adjustments that the

12 Commission approved in both of those which the Company

13 did not carry forward into 13-0301.

14        Q.   Right, but I guess my question really is

15 could -- as with the, you know, previous line items, a

16 party could propose to reverse that adjustment in the

17 next update proceeding, correct?

18        A.   Sure.  And that has happened in the past

19 update cases.

20        Q.   Okay.  And the Commission would have to

21 consider that issue or consider the issue of accrued

22 vacation reserve in the next update and reconciliation

23 proceeding, correct, if a party made that proposal?

24        A.   The Commission would consider any
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1 proposals, yes, I agree with that.

2        Q.   Turning to page 8 of Exhibit 2.5, a party

3 could propose a -- page 8 line 40a, it refers to

4 Accumulated Deferred Income Taxes Related to Projected

5 Plant, correct?

6        A.   Correct.

7        Q.   And a party could propose to remove line

8 40a in an annual updated reconciliation; is that

9 right?

10        A.   Once again I'm -- I suppose they could, but

11 the parties have been focused on the actual revenue

12 requirement and not focused on items that appear on

13 the schedules -- line items as they appear on the

14 schedules.

15        Q.   But if that proposal were adopted, that

16 would change -- If the proposal were made and adopted

17 by the Commission, that would change the methodology

18 by which the filing of revenue requirement was

19 calculated, right?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Turning on to page 17 of Exhibit 2.5, go

22 down to line 46, Performance Share Unit Program, a

23 party could propose to eliminate the adjustment at

24 line 46 for the Performance Share Unit Program,
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1 correct, in an updated reconciliation?

2        A.   I think -- Once again this is a component

3 of incentive compensation.  I think that is set forth

4 in the protocols in EIMA.  So they could propose it,

5 but then they'd be -- they would not be in compliance

6 with the protocols that are in EIMA.

7        Q.   What about NESC Rework, could a party

8 propose to eliminate that adjustment in an updated

9 reconciliation?

10        A.   Sure.

11        Q.   And then if a party proposed to eliminate

12 the NESC Rework adjustment and that proposal was

13 adopted, another party could come back in a subsequent

14 proceeding and propose that it be reinstated, correct?

15        A.   I'm sure that happens all the time in rate

16 cases.

17        Q.   I'd like to turn you to FR D-1, and that is

18 page 13 of 2.5.  Really my question is that you don't

19 consider that FR D-1 is part of the formula rate

20 structure or protocols, correct?

21        A.   I believe that the protocols do set forth

22 how the capital -- cost of capital is to be

23 calculated, but I don't include this specific schedule

24 in my recommended definition for the formula rate
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1 structure.

2        Q.   Okay.  And you've acknowledged in data

3 responses that the Company could alter FR D-1 without

4 Commission approval, correct?

5        A.   Right because it's not part of the approved

6 formula rate structure.

7        Q.   Okay.  Back to Exhibit 2.5, page 5, you

8 would agree that page 5 is the ROE Collar Computation?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   And that's referenced on Schedule FR A-1,

11 correct, at line 29?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   Page 5 line 1 is identified as DS Rate

14 Base; is that correct?

15        A.   That's correct.

16        Q.   Okay.  And there's a specific source for

17 the DS Rate Base amount identified as Schedule FR A-1

18 REC line 11; is that correct?

19        A.   That's correct.

20        Q.   Okay.  Now, if your proposal was adopted, a

21 party could propose a change in an updated

22 reconciliation proceeding of the source for page 5

23 line 1, correct?

24        A.   Once again if parties were -- were
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1 proposing changes to this schedule, they could do

2 that.  I believe in 13-0301 there were -- there was a

3 proposal to change what value was used for the

4 delivery service rate base, which is the starting

5 point on this calculation.

6        Q.   Okay.  But a party could propose -- I guess

7 what I'm saying is a party could propose to change the

8 identification of the source in this -- in line one,

9 correct?  So to give you an example, they could say --

10 they could change the source to FR A-1, line -- FR

11 A-1, not FR A-1 REC, but FR A-1, line 11, right?

12        A.   I suppose if that was their position.

13        Q.   And if you look back at FR A-1 and FR A-1

14 REC line 11, you would agree that changing the source

15 to FR A-1 line 11 from FR A-1 REC line 11 would result

16 in a higher rate base amount, right?

17        A.   Right, based on the numbers on this exhibit

18 that you gave me.

19        Q.   Okay.  And would you agree if we go down to

20 line 32, this would lower the -- I'm sorry.  Taking

21 you back to page 5 again , the DS ROE percentage on

22 line 32, you would agree then that if you shifted the

23 source of line 1 to FR A-1 line 11, you would end up

24 with a lower amount for DS ROE percentage of line 32?
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1 I'll walk you through it if that would help.

2        A.   That might help, might save some time.

3        Q.   So if you look at line 1, or you're welcome

4 to accept it subject to check, but if you look at line

5 1 and then go to line 6, line 6 deals --

6             JUDGE ALBERS:  Someone's on the phone

7 rattling some papers.

8 BY MR. STURTEVANT:

9        Q.   So if you go through -- line 1 shows up on

10 line 6, line 6 is the product of line 1 and line 2.

11 So you would agree then if line 1 is higher, then line

12 6 is higher?

13        A.   Correct.

14        Q.   Okay.  And then if you go down to line 32,

15 line 32 is the result when you divide line 31 by line

16 6.  So if line 6 is higher, then the result is lower?

17        A.   That's correct.

18             MR. STURTEVANT:  Okay.  Thank you.  I have

19 no further questions.

20             JUDGE ALBERS:  Thank you.

21                   Were there any objections to

22 admission of AIC Cross Exhibit 1SH?

23                   (No response.)

24             JUDGE ALBERS:  Hearing no objection, it is
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1 admitted.

2                   (AIC Cross Exhibit 1SH admitted.)

3             JUDGE ALBERS:  Mr. Doshi, did you have any

4 questions?

5             MR. DOSHI:  No, your Honor.

6             JUDGE ALBERS:  Mr. Olivero?

7             MR. OLIVERO:  No redirect.

8             JUDGE ALBERS:  No redirect.  Okay.  Any

9 objection on Staff Exhibit 11 and Attachments A

10 through H?

11             MR. STURTEVANT:  No objection.

12             JUDGE ALBERS:  Hearing no objection, Staff

13 Exhibit 11 is admitted.

14                   (Staff Exhibit 11 and Attachments A

15                    through H admitted.)

16             JUDGE ALBERS:  That was the last witness

17 for today.  So thank you.  Why don't we go off the

18 record and look at our calendars to discuss a briefing

19 schedule.

20                   (WHEREIN, a discussion was held off

21                     the record.)

22             JUDGE ALBERS:  Back on the record.  The

23 parties have agreed to joint briefing outline on

24 February 25th, and after that they would file initial
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1 briefs on March 7 and reply briefs on March 21st.

2                   Anything else for the record today?

3             MR. STURTEVANT:  Nothing for the Company,

4 your Honor.

5             MR. OLIVERO:  No.

6             JUDGE ALBERS:  I can't think of any reason

7 to leave the record open.  So unless anybody else has

8 something, we'll go ahead and thank you all and mark

9 the record heard and taken.

10                   (The record was marked heard and

11                    taken.)
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